APPENDIX A

The Policy and Procedures on pages 1-4 have been adopted by Resolution 675-18, amending Resolutions 326-00, 344-01, 363-02, 367-02, 390-03, 392-03, 471-06, 487-07, 532-10, 553-11, 558-11, 561-11, 594-13, 604-14, 624-15, 639-16, 654-17, and 674-18. Any changes or deletions will require an amendment to the Resolution.

COMMISSION MEETINGS

TIME AND LOCATION OF MEETINGS

- 1. Effective March 1, 2018, with the exception of the December schedule outlined in paragraph 2 immediately below, regular meetings of the Port of Port Townsend will occur twice a month on the second Wednesday of each month at 1:00 p.m. and on the fourth Wednesday of each month at 5:30 p.m. in the Port Commission Building, 333 Benedict Street, Port Townsend, Washington. Public Workshops to be called as needed.
- 2. To accommodate the December holiday schedule, only one regular meeting will be held in December on the second Wednesday of the month, December 12, 2018 at 1:00 p.m.

RULES OF TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS

- 1. Order of Business shall be as follows:
 - I Call to Order
 - II Approval of Agenda
 - Public Comments Related to/not related to the agenda (limited to total of thirty (30) minutes; three (3) minutes per person)
 - IV Consent Agenda
 - V Second Reading (Action Items)
 - VI First Reading (Discussion Only)
 - VII Regular Business
 - VIII Staff Comments
 - IX Commissioner Comments
 - X Next Meeting
 - XI Executive Session, (If called)
 - XII Adjournment
- 2. All matters which, in the judgment of the Commission, are of a legislative character and shall be embodied in the form of Resolutions. Resolutions shall be numbered consecutively, and the original copy shall be signed by the President and Vice President and attested by the Secretary in open session. Resolutions shall be filed by the Executive Assistant and shall be recorded in a book or books kept for such purpose, which shall be public records.

3. Organization of Workshops:

- a. Shall have an agenda at the beginning of the workshop.
- b. Will have minutes recording topics discussed either in written and/or audio format.
- c. Will be used for discussion only, with no binding decisions made by the Commissioners.
- d. Rules governing written and spoken input from members of the public for business meetings will not apply to workshops.

4. Organization of Regular Business Meetings:

- a. Shall have an agenda approved at the beginning of the meeting.
- b. Will begin with the Pledge of Allegiance.
- c. Will have minutes recording topics discussed and actions taken either in written and/or audio format.
- d. Will make any information to be presented before the Commission for consideration to the public in advance of the meeting. This information will be part of the agenda and meeting packet posted on the Port's website pursuant to RCW 42.30.077.
- e. Will allow presentations by each member of the public indicating a desire to address the Commission, of no more than three (3) minutes, (maximum of thirty minutes) for Public Comment period on any appropriate topic. Each speaker must state their name and the subject of their comment before beginning. Written comments are encouraged.
- f. When, in the opinion of the Commission's presiding officer, significant information has been presented to the Commission which was not made available to the public in advance, the presiding officer may allow additional public comment at a time and limited in a fashion the presiding officer will make clear.
- g. No public comment will be entertained once a motion for action has been called and the Commission's deliberation has begun.
- h. Public comments and presentations shall adhere to common norms of civility and may be cut off by the presiding officer if in his or her judgment these norms of civility are violated. Disruptions of Port Commission meetings are prohibited. Disruptions include, but are not limited to the following:
 - Failure of a speaker to comply with the allotted time established for the individual speaker's comment;
 - ii. Addressing the audience, rather than the commission, by a member of the public

- who has been recognized by the presiding officer for public comment;
- iii. Outbursts (e.g., clapping, shouting, cheering) from members of the public who have not been recognized by the presiding officer for public comment;
- iv. Holding or placing a banner or sign in the Commission Room in a way that endangers others or obstructs the free flow of meeting attendees or the view of others attending the meeting; or
- v. Behavior that intentionally disrupts or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of Commission business.
- 5. Conduct of Regular Business Meetings:
 - a. The Port Commission, as a governing body, is charged with making decisions that advances the mission of the Port and which are based on sound information and analysis, respect for views of the public, and each Commissioner's best disinterested judgment.
 - b. With only 3 elected Commissioners, the Commission can operate with a high degree of informality and need not be bound to all the provisions spelled out in standard codes of parliamentary procedure. However, some formal procedures need to be followed to respect the rights of all 3 Commissioners to participate equally and fully in all Commission business.
 - c. Some fundamental principles for conducting Commission meetings include (taken from The Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure, by Alice Sturgis):
 - i. All Commissioners have equal rights, privileges, and obligations.
 - ii. The majority vote decides.
 - iii. The rights of the minority must be protected.
 - iv. Full and free discussion of every proposition presented for decision is an established right of the members.
 - v. Every member has the right to know the meaning of the question before the Commission and what its effect will be.
 - vi. All meetings must be characterized by fairness and by good faith.
 - d. Routine and ordinary business may be approved and/or rejected by the Commission by placing it on either the Consent Agenda, or as an item of "Regular Business". Examples of items typically placed on the consent agenda are approval of warrants and meeting minutes.

Examples of items considered as "Regular Business" include lease agreements, contracts, and grant agreements.

Matters of routine and ordinary business may be voted on at the same meeting at which they are introduced. Any one Commissioner may delay the vote on a specific item and request additional information before completing its consideration.

- e. To facilitate sufficient time for reflective consideration of proposals by Commissioners and members of the public and staff, all proposals for policies* which impact members of the public shall be voted on no sooner than the immediate next regular business meeting following introduction of the proposal in the form of a motion moved by a Commissioner. The introduction of a proposal is the "first reading" and the vote is the "second reading". This requirement may be waived by a unanimous vote of the Commission.
 - A policy proposal, once moved as a motion, may be discussed at subsequent Commission meetings without a vote required and may be amended at subsequent meetings.
 - ii. At any subsequent Commission meeting, and Commissioner may move "To vote immediately" on the policy proposal. This motion is not debatable and requires a two-thirds affirmative vote.
 - iii. The chair may call for a vote on the policy proposal at any subsequent Commission meeting and may proceed with a vote in the absence of any objections by other Commissioners.
 - *Examples of policy actions include adoption of the budget, adoption of strategic and/or comprehensive plans.
- f. All motions require a second. In the absence of a second, the motion is declared dead.
- g. Minor amendments to a motion may be accepted as a "friendly amendment" by the maker of the original motion without a vote on the amendment.
- h. The presiding officer of the Commission meeting shall have the right to participate fully in the discussion and shall cast a vote on all motions.
- i. The standard priorities and requirements for main, subsidiary, and privileged motions shall be used.
- 6. The draft agenda may be available by Friday of the week previous.
- 7. The Executive Director or his designee would be responsible for keeping track of each issue.
- 8. All public comments and questions should be directed to the Commissioners. If the Commissioners so desire, they may refer the question to the Executive Director, Port Attorney, and/or other Port Staff in attendance.

SMOKING

Smoking is prohibited during the Commission meetings.

MINUTES

- 1. Additions and or corrections to the Minutes will be recorded and become a part of the revised and approved consent agenda. Minutes are to be available to the Commissioners prior to the meetings.
- 2. Minutes are recorded according to RCW 42.32.030

VOUCHER APPROVAL

It shall be the policy of the Port of Port Townsend Commissioners to approve vouchers for payment and authorize the issuance of warrants by signing a list which will indicate the voucher number, to whom paid, amount and purpose of the payment. Voucher approval is incorporated under "Consent Agenda".

COMMISSIONER'S COMPENSATION

Each Commissioner shall be reimbursed or compensated for actual attendance at general meetings and for performance of other services in behalf of the Commission up to the maximum rate allowed in accordance with **RCW 53.12.260**.